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IKO U.K. Limited

Strategic report
For the year ended 31 December 2020

The directors present their strategic report for IKO U.K. Limited (the "company") and its subsidiary undertakings
(together the "group") for the year ended 3 1-December 2020.

Principal activity

The punc1pal activity of the company is being the holding company (or parent) of an integrated group of
companies engaged principally in the manufacture, distribution and installation of bitumen-based waterproofing
systems and building products,

The group also manufactures and sells msulatlon products

Review of the business .
As shown in the group's profit and loss account, the group's turnover has increased by 0.87% from the prior year to
£311,827k (2019: £309,132k). The Gross profit margin as % of sales remained strong at 26.3% (2019: 28.1%).
The profit before taxation increased by 15.1% to £28,045k (2019: £24,360k), being the result from ‘continued
operations’. The 2019 result was impacted by £2,003k operating losses and £2,418k one-off impairment costs
(Note 10) relating to winding down the Tortolani contracting business in Belgium, completed in early 2020 with a
" remaining impact of £178k write off in 2020. It should be noted that these are the consolidated financial
statements and therefore there are many factors impacting the movement in results. For detailed information
regarding the movements on trading results, the subsidiary trading financial statements should be reviewed. A full
listing of the subsidiary undertakings is included within note 18.

Overall, the £311,827k turnover for 2020 was ‘stable’ compared to 2019, however, being the result of a
combination of effective growth in sales volume, sales price increase, market growth and the impact of pound
sterling ("GBP") vs. Euro exchange rate evolution for the entities being part of the ‘continuing operations’ scope,
fully compensating the £6,782k decrease as result of the lost revenue, caused by winding down the Tortolani
contracting business in Belgium, early 2020. The increase in sales prices in 2020 is due to general increases across
the market, driven by availability of primary raw materials, such as bitumen and specific chemical components
used for producing insulation boards. A significant number of group entities operate in the Euro-zone, while GBP
is the group reporting currency, therefore part of the increase in margin is atfributable to GBP getting stronger
compared to the Euro in 2020, as a result of the mix of the Brexit impact on the financial markets and a general
economic revival in second half of 2020, after initial slowdown in the first half 0f 2020, as result of the COVID-19"
pandemic. In response to the COVID-19 pandemic the group took advantage of the UK Coronavirus Job
Retention Scheme and similar European Schemes which resulted in the group receiving a £1,735k government
" grant to cover the salary costs employees affected by the pandemic (2019: £nil) (see note 5). The currency impact
for 2020 is estimated at 1.6% (compared to 1% in 2019). The group's short term debtors balance has decreased by
6.0%, whereas the debtors balance relating to borrowings of cash excess, to other IKO European group
companies, increased by 42.6% (see note 20) following interest rate developments in the local financial markets.
The group trade debtors decreased by 10.0% as result of the strong collection policy. The group creditors
increased by 7.1%.

An analysis of turnover is given in note 4 to the financial statements.

The balance sheet in the financial statements shows that the group's financial position at the year-end has further
strengthened and is in a net assets position of £203,562k (2019: £179,221k). As result of the activity growth and
the sustained strong operating performance, focus on cash and optimizing working capital, the group managed
further growth in net current assets from £96,131k in 2019 to £106,197k in 2020, and closing the year 2020, with
a net cash position amounting to £65,818k (2019:£49,662k). For further detads we refer to the cash flow
statement.

Future developments

The group continues to focus on cost efficiency and strives to provide value-added products and services to its
customers, through innovation and continued focus on the maintenance of strong relationships with customers,
Competitive pressure on selling prices, increase in raw material prices, as observed in 2020 and continuing in
2021 and will continue to be, a challenge for the group.
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IKO U.K. Limited

Strategic repbrt (continuéd)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Principal nsks and uncertamtles
Trading risks .

The current economic and political climate and outlook in combination with the competitive pressure in the
market place and variability in cost of raw material prices are potent threats to existing profit margins and overall
profitability. .

Cash flow risk

The company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates
and interest rates. Exchange rates and interest rates are monitored on a regular basis by the directors, no hedge
. accounting is adopted by the entity.

Credit risk
The. company s principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables.

The company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the balance
sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables. An allowance for impairment is made where there ‘is an
identified loss event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a reduction in the recovenablllty of the

cash flows.

The company has no s1gmﬁcant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a:large number of
counterparties and customers. Funhermore, the company insures its debtors to mitigate the risk of non-payment
further. . .

The group is exposed to credit risk through the financial failure of key customers. To mitigate this risk, the group
. has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential customers before sales are made. The
amount of exposure to any individual counterparty is underwritten by credit insurance where possible and any
uninsured exposure is managed in accordance with group credit policies and procedures.

Liguidity risk _

In order to maintain liquidity to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing -operations and future
developments, the company uses a mixture of long-term and short-term debt finance.

Exchange risks 4
The group purchases raw materials from, and sells products to, international markets and is therefore exposed to
currency movements on such transactions. Where appropriate, to provide certainty of future cash flows to mitigate
against foreign exchange fluctuation, the group can enter into forward exchange contracts subject to Board
approval. No such contracts were entered into in 2020, there were no open contracts at the year end (2019: same).

Financial risks A

The group was historically funded by the wider IKO group with related party debt of £7,000k (2019: £7,000k).
This loan was fully refunded after balance sheet date, in August 2021 (see Note 31). The group also has a pension
scheme liability of £20,990k (2019: £18,729k) (see note 27). The group has sufficient cash for its business needs
and can therefore manage future debt and pension repayments from its cash and working capital funds.

Liability risks : .
There is no known exposure to legal claims as of 31 December 2020 other than those provided in the financial

statements.




IKO U.K. Limited

Strategic report (continued)
. For the year ended 31 December 2020

Financial key performance indicators
Despite some challenging trading conditions during the year, turnover increased by 0.9% from 2019.

The company uses a range of performance indicators to monitor business performance. Some of the key financial
performance indicators are:

2020 2019
Gross margin 26.3% 28. l%
Operating profit margin 9% 8%
Return on equity 10% C 0%
Debtor days 58 63
Stock holding days : 53 51

The group was able to stabilise the grosé profit margin at 26.3%, despite raw material prices in the market. The
improvement in the operating profit margin was mainly driven by the scope changes. Debtors days were reduced
to 58 days, as result of the strong collection policy. Return on equity and stock holding days remain stable.

~ For more detailed infonmation'regarding the key performance indicators refer to the individual subsidiary
financial statements.

Other key performance indicators

The group manages its operations on a country level because of the different competitive landscapes and
€conomies in combination with the various business segments it operates. For this reason, the, company's directors
believe that further key performance indicators for the group are not necessary or appropriate for an understanding
of the development, performance or position of the business.

The integrated companies use a variety of non-financial key performance measures, which are dependent on and -
reflect the nature of their operations and can include measuring on-time deliverables, order fulfilment, customer
complaints, production efficiencies and overhead expenditure.

Brexit :

‘With Brexit effective as of 1 January 2021, the period of regulatory uncertainty one faced at the end of 2020,
partially extended into 2021. New business processes e.g. for customs compliance have been rolled out. The
business will continue to monitor the situation so that we are prepared to react to new opportunities, risks and
challenges that may present themselves. Management has performed detailed review of Brexit impact and
implemented required administrative and ERP changes, as well as committed engagement of logistical trading
partoers, in order to handle the additional administrative and financial requirements for customs purposes, as the
group is acquiring majority of its’ raw materials from outside UK. The business activities have been resumed in
January 2021 and no constraints in the UK - EU supply chain were noted.

Impact of COVID-19

In 2020, the impact of COVID-19 pandemic was noted across the different geographical areas, however with
different timing and severity, depending on the geographical area. The group rolled out a full set of hygiene and
safety measures in 2020, in line with local Governmental Instructions, in order to protect the staff against potential
COVID-19 infection. However, 2020 results demonstrated that the impact on the business performance was rather
moderate in 2020.and we are confident that the group will continue to generate sustainable profit in 2021, The
continuing COVID-19 pandemic waves are unlikely to impact business operations and results in 2021 in the same
way as experienced in April/May 2020. Overall, we are looking forward to positive outlook for 2022, ali
indicating continuing strong demand and sales volumes in targeted UK and European markets, supporting
sustainable plant occupation and performance in the forthcoming year, albeit in a challenging economic
environment (we refer to increasing raw material prices, as discussed above).




IKO U.K. Limited

Strategic report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

The company response to COVID-19 p(mdemlc in 2020

In response to the Covid-19 pandemic and following the govemment guidance, all office based staff who were
able to do their entire job from home, were asked to work from home. Anyone unable to work from home was able
to come to our COVID secure offices as normal. The business furloughed most manufacturing and contracting
operatives for April, with the majority of operatives returning for full availability to service demand on ordets
secured towards end of Q2. In response to the COVID-19 pandemic the group took advantage of the UK
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme and similar European Schemes which resulted in the group receiving a
£1,735k government grant. In addition, the UK companies also took advantage of VAT deferral, for one quarter,
from Q2 into Q3, with relating VAT due settled subsequently. At year end 31 December 2020, only the VAT
payable for Q4 remained open (2019; same).

Section 172(1) statement

IKO UK Ltd as a group, shares the global IKO Group values which have played a vital role in the business history.
These values remain essential for the personal and professional development of all our stakeholders and for the
continued success and growth of the IKO Group, forming a fundamental part of our culture. This approach we feel
makes us a unique organisation. The values not only focus on selling high quality products but more so on
elevating customer experiences at every touch point — operating with integrity and honesty and always making
decisions based on the long-term interest of our customers, company and employees.

The six values are long term, agility, humility, integrity, knowledge sharing and performance.

The likely consequences of any decision in the long-termn

The focus on the global value of ‘long term’ can be demonstrated in IKO’s continued capital investment in the
main manufacturing facilities in the UK, the Netherlands and Belgium. These investments drive employment
within local communities and also ensure IKO to have the structures in place to drive the business forward for
many years to come.

The group also seeks to enhance the long term performance of products through continuous improvements and
quality control in order to meet evolving building designs and the European business standards. Research and
development is a key area of focus across all sites.

The interests of the group’s employees

The IKO groups ethos emphasises a business is only as good as its people. This value is recognised by the business
having an assigned learning and development coordinator that manages the development of all employees. The
employees within the business strive for personal development and career progression, areas such as this are
managed within annual management development programmes, internal training courses, external courses and
online courses tailored around other critical areas such as health and safety, modern slavery awareness and fraud.
A key area of focus remains to be the health and safety of our people, with again significant training hours
achieved in 2020, along with health surveillance checks for our staff.

It is the group’s practice to give full and fair consideration to applications for employment received from disabled
persons, subject to the IKO’s requirements and to the qualifications, ability and aptitude of the individual in each
case. In the event of staff becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure their continued employment w1th IKO
and to provide suitable adjustments to the workplace where appropriate.

IKO operates in full accordance with prevailing employment legislation including information and consultation
with employees and their representatives on matters affecting their interests. Outside of any necessary formal
consultation process, there are regular briefings between the Group Companies and the Works Councds/Trade
Union bodies.

The need to foster the group’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

To sustain customer relationships we have customer satisfaction survey which is generated and analysed monthly.
The results of this are analyscd and actions are taken where necessary. Several IKO companies rolled out a further
detailed annual survey in 2020 whereby the results are analysed and a net promoter score is given. Overall
customers were very satisfied and advised they will continue to use IKO for reasons outside of price. They valued
our service, customer experience and added value as paramount to price point on several occasions. °




IKO U.K. Limited

Strategic report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Section 172(1) statement (continued)

The need to foster the group’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others,(continued)

To establish and maintain long term purchasing parmerships IKO has a procurement policy. The policy is set out
to seek the purchase of goods and services from suppliers that enhance positive impact on the environment and
society whilst meeting our business requirements. By incorporating social, environmental and ethical
con51deratxons into procurement decisions we endeavour to make a positive contribution to the environment and
society.

IKO’s supply chain is consolidated- where possible with key focus on quality as well as the ability to take
advantage of economies of scale, -

The impact of the group’s operations on the community and the environment

IKO is committed to_the protecting the environment by complying with all relevant legislation, compliance
obligations and the needs of interested parties in relation to the context of the company, the risks, opportunities
and continued improvement in line with the Company’s environmental objectives and targets. The key
elements of the environmental policy are:

. Environmental management that complies with ISO (International Standards Organisation) 14001:2015
(environment management). :

¢ KEstablish a defined structure ofmsponsibility from the board to all operating units within the UK.

. Commit the necessary resources to fulfil the IKO’s environmental and compliance obligations.

. A commitment not to pollute :

. Periodically undertake a review of the Company’s énvironmental performance.

. Ensure all the leadership team is responsible for ensuring that each site has efféctive arrangements for

identifying and controlling risks in their areas of responsibility and for meeting the site environmental and
compliance objectives.

. The Leadership Team, in conjunction with the Oécupational Health, Safety and Environmental
Department are responsible to the Managing Director for monitoring and reporting on the implementation of this
policy.

" Further details are given tin the Streamlined Energy and Carbon reporting section below. Other IKO cemﬁcatlon
held: ‘

. I1SO9001- Quality Management

. BES6001 — responsible sourcing of construction products
. Gold Member Sustainability School

+ - I8045001- Occupational Health & Safety

Further support for the environment is shown across all sites, all non-recyclable waste from Appley Bridge is
diverted away from Landfill and used to make ‘Refused Derived Fuel’, we recycle our plastics, paper and
cardboard to minimise waste across all our sites. Further demonstration of this includes our Grangemill site
reheats and reuses any material not utilised on site as well as our Chesterfield site which granulates and recycles
waste PVC generated.

The mastic asphalt site of IKO Plc and the hot melt mixer fleet of Briggs Amasco Limited have taken the route of
achieving the ‘CarbonZero™’ standard. Through CO2balance, IKO provides a mastic asphalt solution with no
discernible carbon footprint. By pooling resources and reaching a unanimous decision, we are now in a position to
influence the green thinking of every industry in the world— in Britain, Europe and across the globe —to unite with
us in the battle against climate change, as proven through preference for green energy for offices and bulldmgs as
well as mcreasmg number of full electric company cars in the IKO fleet. :




IKO U.K. Limited

Strategic report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Section 172(1) statement (continued)

The impact of the group’s operations on the commumty and the envimnmem (continued)

A key project funded by IKO’s carbon zero policy was rehabilitation of boreholes in Northern Uganda, supplying
families with fresh clean water. In addition to funding the borehole rehabilitation, the carbon credits that this
project produces creates a funding mechanism to deliver a long-term maintenance programme for the boreholes.

IKO collaborates with local communities close to each site. Some of the current sponsorship provided includes
‘Shevington in the Bloom® and Shevington Sharks ARFLC with their rugby league kit. Other partnerships
include sponsorship to Jordanne Whiley MBE.

Other campaigns supported by IKO include ‘fix that hut’ (business funded repairs to roofs in local communities),
CRASH which assists homeless and hospice charities with construction related projects & Buildforce which
enable service leavers and veterans to achieve sustainable employment in the construction industry.

Briggs Amasco was the first specialist roofing and waterproofing company to become gold members of the
“Supply chain sustainability school”. The school is a multi-award winning initiative providing practical support in
the form of e-learning modules, tailored self-assessment and action plans, sustainability training and networking
opportunities.

The desirability of the group maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct

The company aims to maintain a reputation for high standards of business conduct. We aim to comply with, and in
many cases exceed, the requirements for a company of our size. In particular, we have an increased focus on our
impact on the environment, customers, communities, and supply chain, and builds on our aim to act as a good
corporate citizen.

The need to act fairly as between members of the company
IKO has a close group of family shareholders, acting as ultimate controlling party. Their interests are taken into
account by the directors to promote fairness in decision making,

Streamlined Energy & Carbon Reporting

The following tables and graphs summarise the SECR report key findings around the carbon produced from
energy consumption. To achieve these results, electricity, gas and transport consumption has been monitored
across the business based on actual use and the resultant carbon produced has been calculated. This has then been
measured against the chosen metric (headcount) using an 'Intensity Ratio' and will be tracked in future years to
monitor progress.

1KO Plc Briggs Amasco Ltd
) Jan 20 - Dec 20 Jan 20 - Dec 20
. Energy Conversion * | KwH kgCO2¢ tCO2e KwH kgCO2e tCO2e
Electricity ] 0.23314 | 6,183,814 | 1,441,694 | 1442 105,068 24,496 24
[ Gas | 0.20374 | 18,666,557 | 3,803,124 | 3,803 | | 276678 | 56370 | 56 |
[ LpG | 0.21448 | - | - -] [ 104625 | 236920 | 237 |
Diesel 0.25568° 449,932 115,039 115 1,636,662 418,462 418
Transport | Petrol 0.24164 308,038 74,434 74 - - -
Fuel Qil (FLT) 0.28484 | 5,393,871 | 1,536,390 | 1,536 - - -
[ Total Energy Consumption 31,002,212 | 6970682 | 6971 | | 3123033| 736248| 736
Average Full Time Employee 282 240
Intensity Ratio (tCO2e per FTE) 24.72 3.07
*UK GOV Greenhouse gas reporting: conversion factors 2020
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/greenhouse-gas-re orting-conversion-factors-2020




IKO U.K. Limited

) Strategic report (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Streamlined Energy & Carbon Reporting (continued)

Consumpfion analysis

" The following table shows the consumption of energy and its related carbon production per utility type for the UK

companies:
Electricity Gas LPG
Tota) (tWh) Total (k¥Wh) Total (kWh).
TKO Plc
Burden Road 2,833 - -
Chesterfield 1,558,707 435410 -
Grangemill 647,361 - -
Appley Bridge 3974913 18,231,147 o
Total IKO Pic ' 6,183,814 18,666,557 -
Conversion Factor (kgCO2e) - 023314 0.20374 0.21448
Total Consumption (kgCO2e) 1,441,694 3,803,124 -
Intensity Ratio (tCO2¢ per FTE) S.11 13.49 : -
Briggs Amasco Ltd
24 Lenziemill Road - Glasgow 16,644 33,595 -
‘Amasco House - Newcastle 3,768 14,262 -
Aberford Road - Leeds 14,685 19,575 -
Crescent Street Hull 6,492 14,526 ' -
1st Floor Chequers Lane - Dagenham 8,521 52,301 -
Amasco House - Cradley Heath 30,623 57,977 -
Richmond Road - Manchester 24,335 23,341 -
Quarry Road - Aberdcen - 61,101 -
Total Briggs Amasco Ltd 105,068 276,678 1,104,625
Conversion Factor (kgCO2e) .0.23314 0.20374 0.21448
Total Consumption (kgCO2e) 24,496 56,370 236,920
Intensity Ratio (tCO2e per FTE) 0.10 0.23 0.99
Transport : (
The table below shows carbon producﬁdn of transportation per type of fuel for the UK companies:
' ' Conv. To K¥Wh per kgCO2e Total -
Amount kWh kWh conversion factor kgCO2¢c
JKO Pl .
Diescl Miles 423,119 1.06 449,932 025568 115,039
Petro| 1 Miles 264,822 1.16 308,038 024164 74,434
Coney Green Road (FLT) Litres 5,000 11,18 55,875 0.28484 15,915
Fuel Oil Grangemill (FLT) Litres 427,672 11.18 4,779,246 0.28484 1,361,320
Aplley Bridge (FLT) Litres 50,000 11.18 558,750 0.28484 159,154
Total Transport Consumption (kWh) 6,151,841 1,725,863
Intensity Ratio (tCO2e per FTE) 6.12
| Briggs Amasco Ltd
Company Cars (incl. PCP Miles 490,450 1.06 521,530 0.25568 133,345
Diesel Personal Cars (expenses) Miles 29,837 1.06 31,728 0.25568 8,112
Van Fleet Miles 692,040 1.57 1,083,402 0.25568 277,004
Total Transport Consamption (kWh) 1,636,660 418,461
Intensity Ratio (tCO2¢ pcr FTE) 1.74
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Strategic report (continued)
For the year ended 31 Decemb

er 2020

Streamlined Energy & Carbon Reporting (continued)

Key Performance Indicators

KPIs Onit Total IKO Ple I‘l’;‘;'sf;‘ffj
Scope 1 & 3-CO2 emissions - direct GHG | tCO2¢ 5,529 8,816
Scope 2 energy indirect emissions tCO2e 1,442 24
Emission from energy Exports kgCO2e | - -
Total CO2¢ (net energy exports) kgCO2e | - -
Energy consumption kWh 31,002,212 3,123,033
Energy exported kWh . | - -

| Total Carbon emissions xgCO2e | 6,970,682 736,248
Total Carbon emissions tCO2e 6,971 736
Total number of Full Time Employees FTE 282 240

[ Intensity Ratio - [ 24.72 [ 3.07 |

Energy efficient Actions

The business has made several changes to increase our energy efficiency in line with our commitment to ISO
14001. Across the business we have replaced inefficient lighting with LED equivalents and censored lighting
solutions, We have also invested in infrastructure changes for company cars and promoted electric vehicles.
Each site has electric vehicle charge port:

7ahd signed on its behalf by:




IKO U.K. Limited

Directors' report : ' -
For the year ended 31 December 2020

The directors present their annual report on the affairs of IKO U.K. Limited (the "company") and its subsidiary
undertakings (together the "group"), together with the financial statements and auditor's report for the year ended
31 December 2020. '

Future developments and principal risks and uncertainties are included within the strategic repon on pages 2 and
3, as permitted by s414C(11) of the Companies Act 2006.

Results and dividends
The group profit for the financial year after taxation amounted to £20,735k (2019: £17,300k).

The directors do not recommend a dividend (2019: £nil), to be paid by the IKO UK Group, other than the dividend
of £244,000 (2019: £205,000) paid to non-controlling interests. :

Directors of the group .
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signing were as follows:

H Koschitzky
J Koschitzky
F Haufman
A Carlyle

Directors' interests

None of the directors have any declarable beneﬁclal interest in the shares or loan capital of the company or of any
subsidiary undertaking during the year. H Koschltzky, J Koschitzky, F Hautman and A Carlyle are overseas based
directors and are’not required to notlfy interests in group undertakings incorporated outside of the United
Kingdom.

Charitable and political donations :
. Charitable donations in the UK totalled £ni (2019: £nil). No political contnbutlons were made in the current year
(2019: £nil).

Financial risk management objectives and policies ,
The company's activities expose it to a number of financial risks including cash flow risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk.

Cash flow risk

The company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates
and interest rates. Exchange rates and interest rates are monitored ona regular basis by the directors, hedge
accounting is not adopted by the entlty

Credit risk
The company’s principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other recelvables

The company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the balance
sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables. An allowance for impairment is made where there is an

- identified loss event Whlch based on previous expenence, 1s evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the
cash flows.

The company has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties and customers. Furthermore, the company insures its debtors to mitigate the risk of non-payment
further.

10




IKO U.K. Limited

Directors' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued).

Liquidity visk
In order to.maintain liquidity to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operations and future
developments, the company uses a mixture of long-term and short-term debt finance.

Further details regarding liquidity risk can be found in the accounting policies in the financial statements.

“Going concern
The directors consider that the current economic environment, whilst difficult, is still favourable to facilitate a
steady increase in business confidence within which we can improve returns on capital. The group benefits from
the regional spread, diverse customer base, product range and service offering across its portfolio of trading
businesses providing a spread of risk. The Board continues to employ its strategy of maintaining turnover while
closely monitoring margins, overheads and cash flow.

The group’s balance sheet on page 19 shows net current assets of £106,197k (2019: £96,131k) and net assets of
£203,562k (2019: £179,221k) including cash totalling £65,818k (2019: £49,662k).

The group’s and the company’s forecasts and projections taking into consideration the current economic
environment, show the group and the company continuing to remain profitable. Impacts of increasing raw
material prices and availability are closely monitored throughout the value chain of the group. Several entities of
the IKO UK .group, have significant business interaction with related parties of the wider IKO group, therefore,
directors have considered the going concern for these as well, in making their assessment for IKO UK Group and
concluded that going concern is confirmed for all relevant related parties of the IKO UK group. Thus, the directors

_ continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements.

COVID-19

In 2020, the impact of COVID-19 pandemic was noted across the different geographical areas, however with
different timing and severity, depending on the geographical area. The group rolled out a full set of hygiene and
safety measures in 2020, in line with local Governmental Instructions, in order to protect the staff against potential
COVID-19 infection. However, 2020 results demonstrated that the impact on the business performance was rather
moderate in 2020 and we are confident that the group will continue to generate sustainable profit throughout
2021, The continuing COVID-19 pandemic waves are unlikely to impact business operations and results in 2021
in the same way as experienced in April/May 2020. Subsequent periods in 2021 are showing overall strong
business performance and outlook for 2022 indicates continuing strong demand and sales volumes in targeted UK
and European markets, supporting sustainable plant occupation and performance in the forthcoming year, albeit in
a challenging economic environment (we refer to increasing raw material prices, as discussed above).

Employees

Disabled employees

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearmg in mind the abilities of the
applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their
employment with the group continues and that appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of the group and the
company that the training, career development and promotion of disabled persons should as far as possible, be
identical to that of other employees.

Employee consultation

The group places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and has continued to keep them
informed on matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting the performance of the
group and the company. This is achieved through formal and informal meetmgs throughout the year and the group
holds briefings and presentations when required.
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Directors' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Research and development
TItis the ar oup's policy to enhance the performance of its products through continuous lmpxovements and quality
control in order to meet evolving building design criteria and international building standards.

Auditors
Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

+ so far as the divector is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are
unaware; and .

» the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought Lo have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that
information.

This confirmation is given and should be mterp:eted in accmdance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006.

The auditors, Delmtte LLP are deemed to be 1eappomted under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006,

Directors' indemnities
The compainy has made quallfymg third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were
made during the year and are in force at the date of this report.

Events after the-balance sheet date
After the balance sheet date therc was ongoing uncertainty due to the third ‘lockdown’ in the UK and European
countries due to the Covid-19 pandemic. The impact is discussed in the strategic report. °

With Brexit effective as of | January 2021, the period of regulatory uncertainty one faced at the end of 2020,
partially extended into 2021, New business. processes e.g. for customs compliance have been rolled out. The
business will continué to monitor the situation throughout this period so that we are prepared to react to new
opportunities, risks and challenges that may present themselves, Management has performed détailed review of
Btexit impact and implemented required administrative and ERP changes, as well as committed engageinent of
logistical trading partners, in otder to handle the additional administrative and financial requirements for customs
purposes, as the group is acquiring mqjouty of its’ raw materials from outside UK. The business activities
resumed in January 2021 and ho constraints in the UK - EU supply chain were noted.

Competitive pressure on selling prices, increasg in'fe Taw material prices, as observed in 2020 and continuing in
2021 and will contiiue to be, a chalien}fo e group.

At the point of signing the financial'statements the directors have identified no material impact on the carying
itfes disclosed on the balance sheet as at 31 December 2020

Values of thg assets and liabj

hllmﬂnd signed on its behalf by:
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.TKO U.K. Limited

Directors' responsibilitics statement

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the ﬁnancxal staternents, in
accordance with applicable law and regulations. . .

Company law requires the dLrectoxs to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) including FRS 102 The
‘Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland. Under company law the directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and:of the profit or loss of the company for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:
.+ select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
. disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business. )

The directors are respons1ble for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
group and the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the group and the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Independent auditor's report to the members of IKO U.K. Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements of IKO UK Limited (the ‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the

‘group’):

s give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company s affairs as at 31 December
2020 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended;

o have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Genen ally Accepted Accountmg Practice,
including Financial Reporting Standard.102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland”; and

o ' have been prepared in accordance with the xequlrements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

the consolidated profit and loss account;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

the consolidated and parent company balance sheets;

the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity;
the consolidated cash flow statement; and

the related notes 1 to 34,

o &6 © 0o o o

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable

law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the audltofs responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the

. *FRC’s’) Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these .
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufﬁcwnt and appropriate to provxde a basis
for our opinion.

‘Conclusions relating to going concern :
. In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of

accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group’s and parent company’s
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue. :

Our respoﬁsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information
The other information comprises the information mcluded in the annual report, other than the financial statements

and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the
annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent auditor's report to the members of IKO U.K. Limited (continued)

Other information (continued) ‘
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is

materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial’
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the

preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the directors determine i$ necessary to enable the preparanon of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent
company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

i)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements '
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could réasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. -

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures

in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detectmg irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below.

We considered the nature of the group’s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the group’s
documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We
also enquired of management about their own identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the group operates in, and identified the

key laws and regulations that:

o had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. These
included UK Companies Act and tax legislation; and

e do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the
group’s ability to operate or to avoid a matenal penalty. These included GDPR, employment law, health and
safety and building regulations. ,

We discussed among the audit engagement team including significant component audit teams and relevant
internal specialists such as tax and pensions regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the
organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements,
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Independent auditor's report to the members of IKO U.K. Limited (continued)'

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud (continued)

As aresult of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud or non-compliance with laws and
regulations in the following areas, and our specific procedures perférmed to address it are described below:

o  Significant volume rebates are given to customers. The rebates are complex in nature as they differ by
customer and by product division for both period and % terms. Therefore inherently more risky and
susceptible to misstatements. To assess the adequacy of customer rebates we have obtained an understanding
of the controls over the rebates and have performed detailed testing on a sample of customer rebates where we
have addressed both accuracy and completeness of rebates,

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the

risk of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested

the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making

accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any Sngﬁcant

transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business. ! ’

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following: _

o reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

o. performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may mdlcate risks
of material misstatement due to fraud; and

o enquiring of management and concerning actual and potential litigation and clalms, and instances of
‘'non-compliance with laws and regulations.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed b)} the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

o the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements. :

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their environment
obtained in the course-of the audlt we have not identified any materlal misstatements in the strategic report or the
directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or
the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accountmg records and returns; or
certain disclosures of directors® remuneration specified by law are not made; or

o we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. -

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters,
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7

Independent auditor's report to the members of IKO U.K. Limited (continued)

Use of our report .
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance.with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the

Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. .

Elizabeth Benson BSc ACA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

. Manchester, United Kingdom

23 December 2021
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IKO U.K. Limited

Consolidated profit and loss account
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Note

Turnover : 4
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Distribution expenses
Other operating income . 5
Other operating expense 5
Operating profit
Profit on disposal of fixed assets ) 6
Interest receivable and similar income » . 7
Interest payable and similar expenses . 8

' Profit before taxation » ' 10
Tax on profit 13
Profit for the financial year
Profit for the financial year attributable to:
Owners of the company
Non-controlling interests
Other comprehensive income .
Deferred tax movement relating to remeasurement on defined
benefit pension scheme . o 24
Remeasurement arising on defined benefit pension scheme 27

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations
Total comprehensive income for the year. '

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the company
“Non-controlling interests

The notes on pages 25 to 59 form part of these financial statements.

The above results were derived from cohtinuing operations.

2020 2019
£ 000 £ 000
311,827 309,132
(229,920) . (222,188)
81,907 86,944
(19,856) (22,605)
(34,213) (38,324)
2,019 238
(1,518) (1,456)
28,339 24,797
16 3

88 89
(398) (529)
(294) (437)
28,045 24,360

(7,310) (7,060)
20,735 17,300
20,495 17,113

240 187
20,735 17,300
. 430 665 .

(4,004) (1,720)
7,424 1,244
24,585 17,489
24,345 17,302

240 187

24,585 17,489
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IKO U.K. Limited

Consolidated balance sheet:

As at 31 December 2020
2020 © 2019
£ 000 - £000
, Restated
Note - (sce Note 20)
Fixed assets : ‘ ‘
Intangible assets . .14 602 712
Tangible assets 15 62,194 60,982
Other investments ' , 16 6,113 o 6,113
Investment properties ' 17 995 1,005
Amounts due from related paities 20 52,958 37,125
' 122,862 105,937
Current assets R .
Stocks . 19 | 33,376 30,97
Debtors 20 68,931 73,301
Cash at bank and in hand 65,818 49,662
v 168,125 153,934
- Creditors: amounts falling due withip one year ' 21 (61,928) (57,803)
‘Net current assets . ] 106,197 96,131
Total assets less current liabilities 229,059 ' 202,068
Creditors: amounts falling due after moie than one year 21 (1,074) ' (1,290)
Provisions for liabiliti¢s 24 (462) (505)
Deferred tax liabilities 24 2,971) (2,323)
Pension scheme liability 27 (20,990) (18,729)
Net assets , ‘ 203,562 179,221
Capital and reserves '
Chlled-up share capital . 28 47,538 - 47,538
Merger reserve ' : : 4,833 4,833
Profit and loss account ' 148,426 124,081
Rquity attributable to owners of the company ) ‘ 200,797 176,452
Non-confrolling interests ' 2,765 2,769
Shareholders' funds / ‘ 203,562 179,221
The notes on pages 25 10-59 form part of these financial statements. .

Thdﬁnaxicia}jdof IKO UK. Limited (registration number: 03897526) were approved and authorised by
the Boayd o .

d-signed on its behalf by:

4.4 D&
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IKO U.K. Limited

thpany balance sheet
As at 31 December 2020

. . 2020 2019

. Note o £_000 £ 000
Fixed assets A ' .
Investments ’ : 18 62,600 - 62,600
Current assets .4 : . ':
Debtors ’ . ' 20 4,041 3,611
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year : 21 (20,519) ~ (20,124)
Net current Habilitles ; (16478) . (16,513) .
Total assets less current labilities : C 46,122 46,087
Pension scheme liability ' 27 o (26,990) (18,729)
Net assets v ' 25,132 27,358
Capital and reserves _ ~ _
Called-up share capital ‘ A , 28 A 47,538 47,538
Profit and loss account - . (22,406) (20,180)
Shareholders* funds : ‘ 25,132 27,358

The company has elected to take the exemption permittedAunder section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to
present the company's profit and loss account. The company made a profit after tax for the financial year of
£1,348k (2019: £1,755k). ’ '

-

The notes on pages 25 to 59 form part-of these financial statements.

The fihayicial statements-o KO UK. Limited (registration number: 03897526) were approved and authorised by
the Boptd on Qxfj 3

¥ &2 And signed on its behalf by:




IXO U.X. Limited

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Note

At 1 January 2019
Profit for the financial year

Deferred tax movement relating to remeasurement
on defined benefit pension scheme 24

Remeasurement arising on defined benefit pension
scheme 27

Exchange differences arising on translation of
foreign operations

Total comprehensive income
Dividends paid

At 31 December 2019

Equity
. attributable to the Non- Total
" Called-up share Merger  Profit and loss owners of the  controlling shareholders' -
capital reserve t parent pany interests funds
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 .

47,538 4,833 106,779 159,150 2,787 161,937

- - 17,113 17,113 187 17,300

- - 665 665 - 665

- - (1,720) (1,720) : (1,720)

- - 1,244 1,244 - 1,244

- - 17,302 17,302 187 17,489

- - - - - (205) (205)

47,538 4,833 124,081 176,452 2,769 179,221
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IKO U.K. Limited

Consolidated statement of changes in equity .
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

Equity .
attributable to the Non- Total
Called-up share Merger  Profit and loss owners of the  controlling shareholders’
i capital reserve account parent company interests funds
. Note £000 £ 000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At ] January 2020 b 47,538 4,833 124,081 176,452 2,769 179,221
Profit for the financial year - - 20,489 20,489 246 20,735
Deferred tax movement relating to remeasurement
on defined benefit pension scheme 24 - - 430 430 - 430
Remeasurement arising on defined benefit pension . )
scheme ' , 27 - - (4,004)° (4,004) - (4,004)
Exchange differences arising on translation of .
foreign operations - - 7,430 7,430 (6) 7,424
Total comprehensive income ' ' - - 24,345 24,345 240 24,585
Dividends paid - - - - (244) (244)
At 31 December 2020 . 47,538 4,833 148,426 200,797 2,765 203,562
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IKO U.K. Limited

Compahy statement of éhanges in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2020

_ " Note
At 1 January 2019 -
Profit for the financial year

Deferred tax movement relating to
remeasurement on defined benefit pension
scheme 24

Remeasurement arising on defined benefit
peasion scheme 27

Total comprehensive income

At 31 December 2019

" At 1 January 2020
Profit for the financial year

" Deferred tax movement relating to
remeasurement on defined benefit pension
scheme : : 24

Remeasurement arising on defined benefit
pension scheme ' 27

Total comprehensive income

At 31 December 2020

Called-up share

Profit and loss

Note

capital account Total
- £.000 £000 " £000
47,538 (20,880) 26,658
- 1,755 1,755
- 665 665
- (1,720) . (1,720)
- 700 700
47,538 (20,180) 27,358
Called-up share  Profit and loss
capital account Total
£000 £000 £000
47,538 (20,180) 27,358
- 1,348 1,348
- 430 430
- (4,004) (4,004)
- (2,226) (2,226)
47,538 (22,406) - 25,132
23.




IKO U.K. Limited

‘Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Operating profit

Adjustments to cash flows from non-cash items
Depreciation and amortisation '
Changes in fair value of investment property
Post-employment benefits less payments

Effect on unrealised foreign exchange movements

Operéting cash flow before movement in working capital
(Increase)/Decrease in stocks

Decrease in debtors

Increase in creditors

Decrease in provisions

Income taxes paid

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interest received

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Increase related party loans receivable
Repayment of related party loans
Acquisitions of tangible assets

Proceeds from sale of tangible assets
Proceeds from sale of investment properties

Net cash flows used In investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid

Repayment of loans due after one year
Dividends paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Note

10
17

19

20

21
24

20

20

15
15
17

21

2020 2019
£000 £000
28,339 24,797
5,198 4391
(80) " (35)
; (2,332)
1,915 (103)
35372 26,718
(2,405) 415
4,078 1,599
3472 3,096
@3) (71
- (5,450) (6,788)
16 3
88 89
35,128 24,761
(19,239) (17,860)
3,406 ;
(5,201)° (5,926)
295 375
485 .
(20,254) (23,411)
@7 @)
216) (330)
(244) (205)
(487) ~ (556)
14,387, 794
49,662 48,408
1,769 460
65,318 49,662
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1KO U.K. Limited

. Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

1 General information

IKO UK. Limited (the ‘company') is a private company limited by shares, i corpomted in the United Kingdom
under the Companies Act 2006 and is registered in England and Wales. The address of its registered office and
principal place of business is Appley Lane North, Appley Bridge, Wigan, Lancashire, WN6 9AB. .

The company is a parent undertaking and therefore these consolidated financial statements present the financial
~ information of the company and its subsidiary undertakings (together "the group”), as well as the company's
individual financial statements.

The principal activities of the company and its subsidiaries are the manufacture, distribution and mstallatxon of
bitumen-based waterproofing systems and building products.

The group's functional currency is pounds sterling, being the currency of the primary economlc environment in
which the group operates. The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling,

The following dormant subsidiaries of the company have taken advantage under section 349A of the Companies
Act 2006 exemiption from preparing individual accounts. These sub51d1ar1es are exempt from the requirement to
prepare individual accounts by virtue of this section, .

Name Companies House Registration Number
Direct subsidiary undertakings N -

The Waterproofing Group PLC - 04278415

Ruberoid Pension Trustee Ltd 06024169

Ruberoid Works Pension Trustee Limited 06024217

Indirect subsidiary undertakings ‘

Ruberoid Pension Trustee Limited 06024169

Ruberoid Works Pension Trustee Limited 06024217

Roof Integrity Limited ' . 11581646

2 Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland ("FRS 102") issued by the Financial Reporting Council ("FRC").
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified for the fair value
of investment properties, as explained in the accounting policies below. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. The group has applied the amendments to FRS 102 issued by the FRC in
December 2017 with effect from 1 January 2019. The transitional provisions relating to the triennial review
amendments have not resulted in any restatements of comparative information by the group.
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IKO U.K. Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 De¢ember 2020

2 Accounting pélicies (continued)

Basis of accounting (continued)
FRS 102 allows a qualifying entity certain disclosure exemptions subject to conditions, which have been complied
with, including notification of, and no objection to, the use of exemptions by the company's shareholders.

The company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 102 and has therefore taken advantage of the
disclosure exemptions available to it in respect of its separate financial statements, which are presented alongside
the consolidated financial statements. Exemptions have been taken in relation to;

« disclosing intra-group transactions, as required by paragraph 7 of section 33 Related Party Disclosures;
«+ presenting a statement of cash flows, as required by Section 7 Statement of Cash Flows;

+. presenting a ﬁnaﬁcia] 'instruments note; and

< presenting key management personnel remuneration.

These financial statements do not include a net debt disclosure note, because the group has a siguificant posmve
net cash position and is not relying on external or bank ﬁnancmg »

Basis of consolidation

The group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the company and its subsidiary
undertakings drawn up to 31 December each year. Subsidiaries are included within the consolidation where the
company has control over such entities, thereby having the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries that are acquired or disposed of within the financial year are
included within, or excluded from, the consolidation from the date that the company obtains, or loses control.

A subsidiary undertaking, Pure Asphalt Limited is included within the consolidation in full, despite having a 30
June 2020 year end, as the management deemed its results to be immaterial to the group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Where nécessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used in line with
those used by the group.

Going concern

After makmg all due enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the group and company will
remain in operational existence for at least twelve months from'the date of approval of these financial statements
and have adequate resources to continue as a going concern. For this reason the directors have continued to
prepare the accounts on a going concern basis. :

The directors consider that the current economic environment, whilst difficult, is still favourable to facilitate a
steady increase in business confidence within which we can improve returns on capital. The group benefits from
the regional spread, diverse customer base, product range and service offering across its portfolio of trading
"businesses providing a spread of risk. Several entities of the IKO UK group, have significant business interaction
with related parties of the wider IKO group, therefore, directors have considered the going concern for these as
well, in making their assessment for IKO UK Group and concluded that going concern is confirmed for all
relevant related parties of the IKO UK group. The Board continues to employ its strategy of maintaining turnover
while closely monitoring margins, overheads and cash flow.

' The group’s balance sheet on page 19 shows net current assets of £106,197k (2019: £96,13 1k) and net assets of
£203,562k (2019: £179,221Kk) including cash totalling £65,818k (2019: £49,662Kk). '
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IKO U.K. Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
“ For the year ended 31 December 2020

2 Accounting policies (continued)

COVID-19 . .
In 2020, the impact of COVID-19 pandemic was noted across the different geographxcal areas, however with
different timing and severity, depending on the geographical area. The group did roll-out a full set of hygiene and
safety measures in 2020, in line with Governmental Instructions, in order to protect the staff against potential
COVID-19 infection. Inresponse to the COVID-19 pandemic the group took advantage of the UK Coronavirus
Job Retention Scheme and similar European Schemes which resulted in the group receiving a £1,735,000
government grant to cover the salary costs employees affected by temporary unemployment (2019: £nil) (see note
5). Furthermore, 2020 results demonstrated that the impact on the business performance was rather moderate in
2020 and we are confident that the group will continue to generate sustainable profit in 2021. The continuing
COVID-19 pandemic waves are unlikely to impact business operations and results in 2020 in the same way as
. experienced in April/May 2020. Overall, we are looking forward to positive outlook for 2021, all indicating
- continuing strong demand and sales volumes in targeted UK and European markets, supporting sustainable plant
occupation and performance in the forthcoming year, albeit in a challenging economic environment, we refer to
increasing raw material prices, as discussed above. »

Turnover
Turnover is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods and services provnded
net of trade discounts, value added tax and similar sales based taxes.

Turnover is recognised as follows:
«  turpover from manufacturing and distribution activities is recognised when the title has passed;

» turnover from contract activities represents the value of work carried out during the year, including amounts
not invoiced. Turnover is based on estimated total turnover (contract value) and the degree of estimated stage
of completion (measured as total costs incurred compared to total costs forecast to the end of the contract) for
each individual contract; and

 interest income is accrued on a time basis using the effective interest method.

Long term contracts

Amounts recoverable on contracts, which are included in trade debtors, are stated at cost plus attributable profit
less any foreseeable losses. The profit on each individual contract is the lower of profit earned to date and that
forecast at completion. Payments received on account are deducted from amounts recoverable on contracts. Such
amounts, which have been received and exceed amounts recoverable, are included in creditors.

In- determining the attributable profit on contracts to a particular accounting period the group uses estimation
techniques. The principal estimation technique used is the preparation of profit forecasts on a contract by contract
basis which enables an assessment to be made on the final out-turn on each contract. Profit is then recognised
when the outcome of the contract can be foreseen with reasonable certainty.

Tax . :
Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or
recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

A provision is recognised for those matters for which the tax determination is uncertain but it is considered
probable that there will be a future outflow of funds to a tax authority. The provisions are measured at the best
estimate of the amount expected to become payable. The assessment is based on the judgement of tax
professionals within the Company supported by previous experience in respect of such activities and in certain
cases based on specialist independent tax advice.
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2 Accounting policies (continued)

Tax (continued) .

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but.not reversed at the balance
sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay
less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date. Timing differences are differences between the
Group’s taxable profits and its results as stated in the financial statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and
losses in tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements.

Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that; on the basis of all
available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which
the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

When the amount that can be deducted for tax for an asset (other than goodwill) that is recognised in a business
combination is less (more) than the value at which it is recognised, a deferred tax liability (asset) is recognised for
the additional tax that will be paid (avoided) in respect of that difference. Similarly, a deferred tax asset (liability)
is recognised for the additional tax that will be avoided (paid) because of a difference between the value at which
a liability is recognised and the amount that will be assessed for tax. The amount attributed to goodwill is adjusted
by the amount of deferred tax recognised. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for timing differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the -
timing difference and it is probable that it will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference. Deferved tax relating to
non-depreciable property measured using the revaluation model and investinent property is measured using the
tax rates and allowances that apply to sale of the asset. In other cases, the measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of the reporting period, to recover or seftle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Where items recognised in other comprehensive income or €quity are chargeable to or deductible for tax purposes,
the resulting current or deferred tax expense or income is presented in the same component of comprehensive
income or equity as the transaction or other event that resulted in the tax expense or income.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if: a) the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities; and b) the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
‘intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered. :

28




IKO U.K. Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2 'Accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currency fransactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the funcnonal currency of the reporting entity usmg the exchange
rate prevailing at the date the transactions took place.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reportmg date are reported at the rates of
exchange prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the translation at the
reporting date of monetary assets and liabilities are reported in profit or loss.

. For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the group are
translated using exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising on translation into the
presentational currency are recognised within other comprehensive income.

Interest payable / receivable
Interest income / expense is accrued on a time bas1s by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable,

Business combinations :

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of a business combination is the
fair value of the consideration given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and of equity instruments issued, plus the
costs directly attributable to the business combination. .

Goodwill .
Goodwill recognised represents the excess of the consideration and directly attributable costs of the purchase
consideration over the fair value of the group's interest in the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent

liabilities acquu'ed

On acquisition, goodwill is allocated to the cash-generatmg units ("CGU's") that are expected to benefit from the
combination,

"Goodwill is amortised over its expected useful life of 10 years.
Goodwill is assessed for impairment where an indication of impairment exists at the reporting date.

Any excess of the aggregate of the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired over the fair value of the
consideration given (negative goodwill), is recognised and released to the statement of comprehensive income in
the periods in which the fair values of the non-monetary assets purchased on the same acquisition are recovered.

Research and development
Research and development expenditure is written off to profit or loss in the year in which it is incurred.

Tangible assets

Tangible assets comprise land and buildings, plant, machinery and vehicles, which are initially recognised at cost,
being the purchase price plus any directly attributable costs, and are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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2 Accounting policies (continued)

Depreclatlon
Depreciation is charged on a straight line basw to allocate the asset's cost, less its esumated residual value, over its
estimated useful life. The useful lives are as follows: :

Asset class ) Depreciation method and rate
Freehold buildings 20 - 50 years

Long leasehold properties ) ' Period of lease

Short leasehold properties Period of lease

Plant, machinery and vehicles 3 - 15 years X

Investment property

Land and buildings, whether in whole or part, are classified as investment property when they are held to earn
rentals or for capltal appreciation, or both. Investment properties are initially measured at cost, which comprises
the purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure, and are subsequently remeasured to fair value at each
reporting date, with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. ' .

Investments in subsidiary undertakings

Investments in subsidiary undertakings (see note 16) are recognised at cost less accumulated impairment losses in ~
the company financial statements. Investments are tested for impairment where an indication of impairment exists
at the reporting date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date the group reviews the carrying value of its assets.to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount
of the asset i$ estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is the
present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. The present value calculation involves
estimating the future cash inflows and outflows to be derived from continuing use of the asset, and from its .
ultimate disposal, applying an appropriate discount rate to those future cash flows. .

Where the recoverable amount of an asset is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is reéognised ‘
immediately in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for an asset is reversed in a subsequent year if, and
only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have ceased to apply.

Stocks

Stock is stated at the lower of cost and net 1eahsable value on a first in first out basis. In the case of finished goods
and work-in-progress, cost is. defined as the production cost which includes an appropnate proportion of
attributable overheads.

Where necessary, provision is made for obsolete, slow moving and defective stocks to reduce the carrying amount
to net realisable value. Net realisable value is based on the estimated selling price less further costs expected to be
incurred to completion and disposal. .
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2 Accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recogmsed when the group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument. The group holds only basic financial instruments, which comprise cash and cash equivalents,
debtors, investments in equity instruments and creditors. The group has chosen to apply the measurement and
recognition provisions of section 11 Basic Financial Instruments and section 12 Other Financial Instruments in
full.

Financial assets - classified as basic financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents :
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand, deposits held with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Considering the significant cash position of the group and because the group is not carrying external financial
debts, the presentation of a (net) debt note is not considered relevant.

Debtors
Debtors are initially recognised at the transaction price, including any transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.

Amounts that are receivable within one year are measured at the undiscounted amount expected to be receivable,
net of any impairment.

Where a financial asset constitutes a financing transaction it is initially and subsequently measured at the present
value of the future payments, discounted at a market rate of interest.

At the end of each repoﬂmg year, the group assesses whether there is objective evidence that any financial asset
may be impaired. A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the financial asset. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows. The amount of the provision is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of an impairment is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original

effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost less impairment, the impairment loss is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the best estimate of the amount that would be received for the asset if it were to be sold at the

reporting date.

Where indicators exist for a decrease in impairment loss, and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the prior impairment loss is tested to determine reversal. An
impairment loss is reversed on an individual impaired financial asset to the extent that the revised recoverable
value does not lead to a revised carrying amount higher than the carrymg value had no impairment been
recognised.
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-

Financial liabilities - classified as basic financial instruments
A

Creditors
Creditors are Lmtlally measured at the transaction price, including any transactlon costs, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Amounts that are payable within one year are measured at the undiscounted amount expected to be payable.

Where a financial liability constitutes a financing transaction it is initially and subsequently measured at the
present value of the future payments, discounted at a market rate of interest.

Borrowings :

Interest-bearing borrowings are initially recorded at fair value, net of transaction costs. Interest-bearing
borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost, with the difference between the proceeds, net of
transaction costs, and the amount due on redemption being recognised as a charge to the statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the relevant borrowing.

Interest expense is recognised on the basis of the effective interest method and is included in interest payable and
similar charges. .

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company hasan uncondmonal nght to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. '

Employee benefits

Short-term benefits

Short-term benefits, including holiday pay and other similar non-monetary benefits, are recognised as an expense
in the period in which the service is received. An accrual is provided for short-term compensated abserices where
entitlement has accumulated, but has not been taken, at the reporting date.

Defined contribution pension schemes '

For defined contribution schemes the amount charged to the profit and loss account in respect of pension costs and
other retirement benefits is the contributions payable in the year. Differences between contributions payable in the
year and contributions actually paid are shown as either-accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet. '

Defiried benefit pension scheme

For defined benefit schemes the amounts charged to operating proﬁt are the costs arising from employee services
rendered during the period and the cost of plan introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They
are included as part of staff costs. The net interest cost on the net defined benefit lability is charged to profit or
loss and included within finance costs. Remeasurement comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on
scheme assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are recognised
immediately in other comprehensive income. . '

Defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets of the scheme held separately from those of the Group, in
separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured
on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date.

32




IKO UK. Limited

Notes to the financial statements (conﬁnued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
The Company is the sponsoring employer of the Group’s defined benefit schemes. There is no contractual
agreement or stated policy for charging the net defined benefit cost to individual group entities and thus the
Company recognises the net defined benefit cost of the schemes in full. Contributions payable by other group
entities reduce the net service cost of the plan recognised by the Company. )

Other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the benefit obligation at thé reporting date.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probably that the obligation will be required to be settled, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the erid of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surroundmg
the obhgatlon Provisions are discounted when the time value of money is material.

Leases
Lease arrangements are classified as a finance lease where the terms of the lease transfer substantlally all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other lease arrangements are classified as an operating lease.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other
resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If payment is deferred
and the time value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a present value basis.

Dividends
Dividend distribution to the company’s shareholders is recognised as a llabxllty in the financial statements in the
reporting period in which the dividends are declared.

Government grants .
Government grants are recognised in other operating income based on the accrual model and are measured at the
fair value of the asset received or receivable. Grants relating to revenue are recognised in income over the period
in which the related costs are recognised. Government grants received in respect of operational fixed assets are
credited to a deferred income account and released to the profit and loss account over the useful economic life of
the asset to which they relate. In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the group took advantage of the
- Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme and similar European schemes which resulted in the group receiving a
government grant to cover the salary costs of a number of employees. The receipt was recognised in other income
within the profit and loss account. . '

3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In applying the group's accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions in determining the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. The directors' judgements, estimates and
assumptions are based on the best and most reliable evidence available at the time the decisions are made, and are
based ‘on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be applicable. Due to the inherent
subjectivity involved in making such judgements, estimates and assumptions, actual results and outcomes may
differ.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates

are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of the
revision and future years, if the revision affects both current and future years. .
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Critical judgements in applying the group's accounting policies (continucd)
The critical judgements that the directors have made in the process of applying the group's accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are discussed below.

(i) Establishing fair value of investment properties

When the fair value of investment properties cannot be measured based on the price of a recent transaction for an
identical asset or liability, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the discounted cash
flow model, using an external, independent valuation expert (see note 17). The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair 'values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as market rent, vacancy rate, yield
requirement and inflation. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
investment proper ties, The carrying value of investment properties at the balance sheet date was £995k (2019:
£1,005k). , -

(ii} Discount rate used to determine the carrying amount of the group's defined benefit obligation

The group’s defined benefit obligation is discounted at a rate set by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on high quality corporate bonds. Significant judgement is required when setting the criteria for
bonds to be included in the population from which the yield curve is derived. The most significant criteria
considered for the selection of bonds include the issue size of the corporate bonds, quality of the bonds and the
identification of outliers which are excluded.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty -

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty, that have a
significant risk of causing a-material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are:

) Recoverabzltty of debtors
A provision for debtors is established when it is estimated that the debtors are not considered to be fully

recoverable. When assessing recoverability the directors consider factors such as the aging of the debtors, past
experience of recoverability, and the credit profile of individual or groups of customers. The group companies
have a credit insurance policy in place to cover this risk.

(ii) Estimating value in use :

Where an indicator of impairment exists, the directors are required to carry out an impairment review to determine
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less cost to sell and value in use. The value in use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the asset or the cash

generating unit.

(#ii) Provisioning for stocks ‘

The group manufactures products, and is subject to changing customer demands and market conditions. As a
result, the directors have considered the recoverability of the cost of stocks and the associated provisioning
required. When calculating the provision, the directors have considered the nature and condition of the items, as
well as saleability of finished goods and future use of the raw materials.

(iv) Long term contracts :

Amounts recoverable on coritracts, which are included in debtors, are stated at cost plus attributable profit less any
foreseeable losses. The profit on each individual contract is the lower of profit earned to date and that forecast at
completion. Payments received on account are deducted from amounts recoverable on contracts. Such amounts,
which have been received and exceed amounts recoverable, are included in creditors.

In determining the attributable profit on contracts to a particular accounting period, the group uses estimation:
techniques. The principal estimation technique used is the preparation of profit forecasts on a contract by contract
basis which enables an assessment to be made on the final out-turn on each contract. Profit is then recognised
when the outcome of the contract can be foreseen with reasonable certainty.
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4 Turnover
The analysis of the group's turnover for the year from continuing operations is as follows:

2020 2019

. £000 £000
Sale of goods , . . i 267,466 , 246,564
Contracting ' 44,361 : 62,568
311,827 309,132

The analysis of the group's turnover for the year by geographical market is as follows:

2020 C2019
' . , £ 000 £ 000
United Kingdom - 126,748 : 131,713
Belgium 87,214 89,167
Netherlands ' ' 66,563 54,149
Rest of Europe ) 28,204 29,025
Rest of World : 3,098 5,078
' 311,827 309,132
5 Other operating income and expenses
2020 2019
. £000 £000
Other operating income - furlough 1,735 -
Other operating income ' o » 284 238
Total other operatiﬁg income ' 2,019 238
Other operating expense (1,518) (1,456)
" Total other operating expense . ' ’ (1,518) (1,456)
.o ) 501 (1,218)

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic the group took advantage of the UK Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme
and similar European Schemes which resulted in the group receiving a £1,735,000 government grant to cover the
salary costs employees affected by temporary unemployment (2019: £nil). :

6 Profit on disposal of fixed assets
The analysis of the group's other gains for the year is as follows:

2020 - 2019
£000 ' £000 .
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 16 3
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7 Interest receivable and similar income

Interest income on amounts due from related parties (note 31)
Interest receivable on cash at bank

8 Interest payable and similar expenses

Interest payable on amounts due to related parties (note 31)
Interest on net defined benefit pension obligation (note 27)
Interest payable on cash at bank

9 Staff costs
by category was as follows:

Production
‘Sales
Administration

The aggregate payroll costs-(including directors' remuneration) were as follows:

\

Wages and salaries

Social security costs

Pension costs, defined contribution scheme (note 27)
Pension costs, defined benefit scheme (note 27)

2020 2019
£000 £000
38 54
50 35
88 89
2020 2019
£000 - £000
19 21
371 508
8 : -
398 529

The average number of persons employed by the group (including executive directors) during the year, analysed

2019

2020

No. Ne,
561 591
251 259
186 196
998 1,046
2020 2019
£000 £ 000
38,144 40,955
6,589 7,253
1,705 1,520
2,324 2,241
48762 51,969
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10 Profit before taxation
Profit before taxation is stated after charging/(crediting):

2020 2019

£ 000 £ 000

Amortisation expense of intangible assets (note 14) . ) 115 © 115
Depreciation expense of tangible assets (note 15) 5,083 4,276
Operating lease income - land and buildings ‘ (170) (188)
Operating lease expense - other 479 282
Foreign exchange losses .. 166 ) 121
Fair value losses/(gains) on investment property (note 17) - (80) 35)
Impairment of Tortolani Business 178 2,418.

The divesting process and unwinding of the Tortolani business cluster in Belgium, as initiated in 2018, was fully
completed in the first half of 2020. The full impact however has been included in the 2019 accounts representing
" £2,003k operating losses and £2,418k impairment losses, as result of the formal events and decision taken in 2019.
In 2020, a final remaining amount of £178k was written off.

¢ -

11 Directors' remuneration
The directors' remuneration for the year was as follows:

2020 C 2019

) £ 000 £ 000

Directors' emoluments 210 183
Company contributions to pension schemes 25 23
' 235 206

No directors were remunerated tBrough the company directly; the amounts disclosed represent the amounts
remunerated through the IKO group. During the year retirement benefits were accruing to 1 director (2019: 1) in
‘respect of defined contribution pension schemes. No other key management remuneration is to be disclosed.

The highest paid director received remuneration of £210,000 (2019: £183,000).

The value of the company's contributions paid to a defined contribution pension scheme in respéct of thé highest
paid director amounted to £25,000 (2019: £23,000).

‘12 Auditors' remuneration
2020 2019

£000 ' £ 000
Fees payable to the company's auditor and its associates for the
audit of the company's annual accounts . 40 40
Fees payable to the company's auditor and its associates for other
services to the group )
The audit of the group subsidiaries 167 123
Taxation compliance services . 54 54
Other non-audit services ' 18 ‘ 18
Total audit fees ‘ | 279 235
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13 Tax on profit
- The tax charge comprises:

2020 - 2019

£000 £000
Current taxation _
UK corporation tax : 4 2,032 2,712
UK corporation tax adjustiment to prior periods . 24 (119)

_' 2,056 2,593

Foreign tax ’ 3,966 4,009
Foreign tax adjustment to prior periods (16) -
Total current tax ' A . ' 6,006 6,602
Deferred taxation .
Arising from origination and reversal of timing differences (note 24) . 1,304 455
Arising from previously unrecognised tax loss, tax credit or
temporary difference of prior periods , , - 3
Total deferred taxation o 1,304 458
Total tax on profit 7,310 7,060

The standard rate of corporation tax for the year was confirmed to remain at 19% (2019: 19%). The actual tax
charge for the current year is set out in the following reconciliation:

2020 ' 2019

| " £000 £000 -
Profit before tax : . . 28,045 . 24,360
Tax on profit at standard UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2019: 19%) _ ‘ 5,329 4,628
Effects of: ) '
Expense not deductible for tax purposes 790 890
Timing differences (note 24) 1,304 458
Differences due to overseas tax rates/allowances - ’ 1,032 . . 1,455
Income not taxable (1,153) ’ (100)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 8 : 271)
_Total tax charge ' 7,310 . 7,060
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13 Tax on proﬁt (continued)

Factors that may affect future tax charges

The standard rate of tax applied to the reported profit on ordinary activities is 19% (2019 19%). In the March
2021 Budget the UK Government announced that legislation will be introduced in the Finance Bill 2021 to
increase the main rate of UK corporation tax from 19% to 25%, effective 1 April 2021. As the changes had not
been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, the deferred tax balances as at 31 December 2020 continue to
be measured at a rate of 19%. The impact of the change in rate on deferred tax (tax base 2020) is, currently

estimated at £ 650k.

14 Intangible assets

Group

: Goodwill .~ Negative goodwill Total

£ 000 £000 © £000

Cost or valuation . . :
At 1 January. 2020 . 29,287 - ' (37 . 29,250
Foreign exchange movements 5 _ - ) 5
At 31 December 2020 29,292 (37 29,255
Amortisation : , : ‘
At 1 January 2020 ' ‘ 28,569 [€2)) 28,538
Charge for the year ' : 119 “) 115
At 31 December 2020 28,688 ' (35) 28,653
Carrying amount ‘
At 31 December 2020 604 A 2 602
At 3 1 December 2019 - 118 . 6) 712

The company does not have any intangible assets.

Negative goodwill is being amortised over 10 years which is equal to the period over which the related
non-monetary assets of the acquired businesses are being depreciated.
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15 Tangible assets
Group .
Land and Plant, machinery
buildings and vehicles - Total
£ 000 £000 £ 000
Cost or valuation ) .

. AtlJanvary2020 - ‘ 54,123 56,947 111,070
Additions © 1,810 3,391 5,201
Transfer to Investment Properties (Note 17) (515) - (515)
Disposals . - - (1,508) . (1,508)
Foreign exchange movements . 1,859 R 2,030 3,889
At 31 December 2020 . 57,277 ) 60,860 118,137
Depreciation : )

At 1 January 2020 ' o 11,509 - 38,579 50,088
Charge for the year . 1,300 3,783 . ) 5,083
Transfer to Investment Properties (Note 17) (120) - ' (120)
Eliminated on disposal : ] - . (1,213) (1,213)
Foreign exchange movements - v 470 1,635 2,105 ‘
At31 December 2020 - ’ 13,159 42,784 55,943
Net book value

At 31 December 2020 ' 44,118 18,076 62,194
At 31 December 2019 , ' 42,614 18,368 V 60,982

Included within the net book value ‘of land and buildings above is £44,118Kk (2019: £42,614k) in respect of long
leasehold land and buildings.

The company does not have any tangible assets.

16 Other investments

Group
2020 2019
. : £ 000 £ 000
- At 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 . 6,113 . - 6,113

The company does not have any other investments.

On 1 January 2007 the group acquired 12,000 D preferred shares in Goldis Enterprises, Inc (a related company
incorporated and registered in Canada) as consideration for the disposal of Blair Rubber Company, Inc. and
Hyload Inc. The registered office address of Goldis Enterprises, Inc is: 120 Hay Road Wilmington, DE 19809
United States.

40




IKO U.K. Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continﬁed) .

For the yéar ended 31 December 2020

17 Investment properties

Group

Valuation and Net Book Value

At 1 January 2020

Disposal :

Transfer from Tangible Fixed Assets (Note 15)
Revaluations

At 31 December

All investment property held are freehold.

The company does not have any investment properties.

The historical cost equivalent values for the investment property are as follows:

Cost )
Accumulated depreciation

Carrying value

i Long term
Freehold Leaschold
Investment Investment

Property Property Total

£ 000 £000 £ 000

810 195 1,005

(485) - (485)

395 - 395

60 20 80

780 215 995

2020 2019

£000 £ 000

745 838

. (208) 214)

537 624

All investment property is stated at fair value determined annually by external valuers all holding recognised and
relevant professional qualifications and having recent experience in the location and class of the investment

property being valued.

The valuations at 31 December 2020 were made by Ryden LLP, Naylors Chartered Surveyors, Roberts & Roberts
Chartered Surveyors, and Ayers & Cruiks on an open market value for existing use basis. Property rental income

earned during the year was £64,000 (2019: £83,000).

18 Fixed asset investments

Company

Investments in subsidiaries

" Company
2020 2019
£000 £.000
62,600 62,600
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18 Fixed asset investments (continued)

Subsﬁdial'ies
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020

Provision
At | January 2020
Impairment

At3l Decembe;‘ 2020
Caljrying amount

' At 31 December 2020
At 31 December 2019

Name " Country of incorporation

Direct subsidiary undertakings

IKO Holdings Plc (registration
number: 02446447) Appley Lane

North, Appley Bridge, Wigan, United Kingdom
Lancashire, WN6 9AB.

The Waterproofing Group PLC

(registration number: 04278415) United King dom

Appley Lane North, Appley Bridge,
Wigan, Lancashire, WN6 9AB.

Ruberoid Pension Trustee Ltd
(registration number: 06024169), 1B

Mount Grace Drive, Poole, BH14 United Kingdom
SNB-

Ruberoid Works Pension Trustee

Limited (registration number: " United Kingdom

06024217), 1B Mount Grace Drive,
Poole, BH14 8NB

The Specialist Waterproofing Group

Limited (¥) (registration number: . . L
 04246517), 1B Mount Grace Drive, United Kingdom

Poole, BH14 SNB

2020
£ 000

66,355

3,755

'3,755

62,600

62,600

Proportion of

Nature of business . ordinary share
capital held
Holding company ' . 100%
Dormant ' | . 100%
D(;rmant ‘ . 100%
Dormant . | ' 100%

Holding company - 100%
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18 Fixed assct investments (continued)

Indirect subsidiary undertakings
Name

IKO Plc (registration number:
02678296) Appley Lane, North

Appley Bridge, Wigan, Lancashire, United Kingdom
WN6 9AB .
IKO Limited Unit 502, Northwest

Ireland

Business Park, Ballycoolin, Dublin 15

William Briggs & Sons Limited
(registration number: 02548605)
Amasco House, 101 Powke Lane,
Cradley Heath, West Midlands, B64
5PX :

Briggs Amasco Limited. (registration _
- number: 03541311), Amasco House, . .

101 Powke Lane, Cradley Heath, United Kingdom
West Midlands, B64 5PX

Ruberoid International Limited
(registration number: 02860994),
Appley Lane North, Appley Bridge,
Wigan, Lancashire, WN6 9AB

1IKO NV (incl.DK Branch)
(registration number: 04063 17459),
. D’Herbouvillekaai 80, 2020 Antwerp

Asbo NV (registration number:
0458131889), D’Herbouvillekaai 80, Belgium
2020 Antwerp

Asphaltco NV, (registration number:
0400456184) D’Herbouvillekaai 80, Belgium
2020, Antwerp ' )

IKO Holdings BV (registration

number: 23057374) Wielewaalweg 1, Netherlands
4791 PD Klundert

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

Belgium

Country of incorporation -

Nature of business

Manufacture of
waterproofing products

Distribution of
waterproofing products

Holding company

Roofing and cladding
services

" Holding company

Manufacture and
installation of

waterproofing products

Distribution of
corrugated sheets

Holding c';ompany

Holding company

i’roportion of
ordinary share
capital held

100%

100%

76%

100%

100%

100% .
100%
99.5%

100%
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18 Fixed asset investments (continued)

Name ' Country of incorporation

Indirect subsidiary undertakings
{continued)

Bitasco Trading BV (registration
number: 20112848) Wiclewaalweg 1, Netherlands
4791 PD Klundert

IKO Insulations BV (registration
number: 20117454) Wielewaalweg Nethcrlands
1+3, 4791 PD Klundert

IKO BV (registration number:
23026078) Wielewaailweg 1, 4791 PDNether! lands
Klundert

“Touwen & Co BV (registration
number: 35017324), Oostzijde 300, Netherlands
1508 ET Zaandam

ATAB NV (registration number:
0629893551), Satenrozen 2 U002, Belgium
2550 Kontich (Belgium)

Pure Asphalt Company Limited **
(registration number: 02983959) ,
Appley Lane North, Appley Bridge,
Wigan, Lancashire, WN6 9AB
Roof Integrity Limited (registration

number: 11581646), 1B Mount Grace United Kingdom
Drive, Poole, England, BH14 8NB

United Kingdom

Nature of business

Distribution 6f roofing
products

Distribution of roofing
products

Distribution of roofing

: products

Manufacture of paints
and wood preservative

Installation of roofing
products

Liquidated 29/06/2021

Contracting

Proportion of
ordinary share
capital held

: 100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%

100%

* Specialist Waterproofing Group Limited ("SWG") is a holding company which owns a 40% interest in William
Briggs & Sons Limited. As SWG has no operations other than its holding in William Briggs & Sons Limited,
“which is consolidated as a subsidiary, SWG has not been included within these financial statements using the
equity method, and the investment is accounted for as part of the direct investment in William Briggs & Sons

Limited.

*¥ Liquidation of Pure Asphalt Company Limited did not have a material impact on the investments during 2020.
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19 Stocks
Group

2020 2019

A ) £000 £ 000
Raw materials and consumables . 9,912 9,760
Work in progress 358 69
Finished goods and goods for resale ‘ 23,106 21,142
33,376 30,971

Impairment of stocks is reviewed annually as part of the routine year end provisioning process, and any changes to
the provision are recognised within the cost of sales in the profit and loss account.

The cdmpany did not have any stock in the current or prior year.

20 Debtors
Group - Company
2020 2019 2020 - 2019
£000 . £000 £000 £ 000
Restated
‘ Note
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors 51,440 55,576 - -
Provision for impairment of debtors (3,248) (2,030) - -
Trade debtors . 48,192 53,546 - -
Amounts recoverable on lorig term contracts 1,773 1,134 L .
Amounts due from related parties 31 - 6,560 5,827 - -
Other debtors . A 3,334 4,294 ' - ) .
Prepayments and accrued income 2,853 2,062 - -
Deferred tax assets 24 " 5,026 5317 4,041 3,611
Income tax assets 1,193 L2l - -
68,931 73,301 4,041 3,611
Fixed assets:
Amounts due from related parties 31 52,958 37,125 .- -
52,958 37,125 - -

- Amounts due from related parties include trading balances that are interest free and loan balances that atiract
interest based on a EURIBOR rate. All related party balances are unsecured, due within one year or repayable on
demand (2019: same). However, some balances are intended for continuing use in the business to support their
day to day activities, and so should be reported as fixed assets. Accordingly, £37,125k has been reclassified from
“Amounts due from related parties” within debtors falling due within one year to “Amounts due from related
parties” within fixed assets in the prior year financial statements.

All other balances are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
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21 Creditors

Group . Company
. 2020 2019 2020 2019
Note £000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Creditors: amounts falling . ‘
due within one year .
Trade creditors . 15,929 22,559 - -
Amounts due to related parties 31 17,103 10,422 20,438 19,957
Social security and other taxes 9,440 6,530 - -
Defined contribution pension
costs 90 86 - -
Other creditors 8,509 7,160 , - -
Accrued expenses 7,896 - 8,080 81 167
* Corporation tax - : 2,314 | 1,660 - -
Deferred income 647 1,306 - -
‘ ' 61,928 57,803 20,519 20,124

Amounts due to related parties include, tradihg balances that are interest free and loan balances that attract interest
at variable rates ranging from LIBOR +1.2% to +1.5% and EURIBOR based rates, these include an £7,000K
.related party loan (see Note 231) of IKO Plc, obtained from IKO Sales Ltd (Canada). This loan was fully repaid

after the year end in August 2021, see note 34.

All related party balances are unsecured, due within one year or repayable on demand (2019: same).

All other balances are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

4

2020
£ 000

Company
2019
£ 000

Group
2020 2019
Note £000 - £000
Creditors: amounts falling
due after one year ) ]
Other loans _ 220 ) 269
Amounts due to related parties 31 854 1,021
' 1,074 1,290

Loans and borrowings are due to related parties and accrue interest at a rate based on EURIBOR. The loans are

unsecured and repayable within five years (2019 same).
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22 Loans and borrowings
Borrowings are repayable as follows:

Grbup L

2020 2019
£000 £ 000

Loans and borrowings . )
Between one and two years ‘ 225 ’ T 204
Between two and five years . . 629 , 817
: 854 - 1,021

Loans and borrowings are due to related parties and accrue interest at a rate based on EURIBOR_ The loans are
unsecured and repayable within five years (2019: same)

23 Obligations under leases and hire purchase contracts

Group
Operating leases -
At 31 December 2020, the group had minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:
Plant, Machinery &
Land and buildings ' ‘ Fleet
2020 . 2019 2020 2019
: .£000 £000 £000 £ 000
Not later than one year : 85 : 88 ) 7 43
Later than one year and not later _ ,
than five years 184 231 134 28
Later than five years 14 279 11 11
283 598 152 82

At 31 December 2020, the group had future minimum lease rentals lecelvables under non-cancellable operating
leases as follows:

- _ 2020 2019
: o . . £000 - . £000
Not later than one year ' - 62 7
Later than one year and not later than five years 220 245
Later than five years 106 185
‘ 388 507
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24 Provisions

Group
Product Environment
warranties provision Other provisions Total

A £ 000 £000 £ 000 . £000
At 1 January 2020 183 136 . 186 505
Utilisation of provisions '
during the year ' (44) - (14) (58)
Increase due to foreign :
exchange differences 14 - 1 15
At 31 December 2020 . 153 136 173 462

The cémpany did not have any provisions.

The warranty provision covers future product costs and claims arising in the normal course of business from prior
period sales. The environment provision largely relates to site clean-up costs at locations of the group's non-UK
operations. This is expected to be utilised over the next 10 years. Other provisions largely relate to pre-retirement
obligations to employees in the group's non-UK operations. This is expected to be utilised over the next 5 years.

Deferred tax
Group

Deferred tax movements o

At 1 January '

Prior year adjustments _

Movement in the profit and loss account (note 13)
Movement in other comprehensive income

31 December

_ Nature or source of the deferred tax items:
Accelerated capital allowances

. Defined benefit pension scheme

Tax losses carried forward

Other timing differences -

2020 2019

£000 £000 .
(2,994) (2,764)
- (23)
1,304 458
(365) (665)
(2,055) - (2,994)
2020 2019
£ 000 £000
545 1,301
(4,041) (3,676)
(985) (1,641)
2,426 1,022
(2,055) (2,994)
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24 Provisions (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax asset (note 20) ' ,
Deferred tax liabilities :

Company

At 1 January »
(Credited)/charged to other comprehensive income

Defined benefit pension scheme

Deferred tax asset

’

2020 2019
£000 £000
(5,026) (5,317) -
2,971 2,323

(2,055) (2,994)
2020 2019
£ 000 £000.
(3,611) (2,941)
(430) (670)
(4,041) (3,611)
2020 2019
£000 '£000
(4,041) (3,611)
(4,041) (3,611)
2020 2019
£000 £000
(4,041) (3,611)

A deferred tax asset of £985k (2019: £1,641k) has been recognised in the financial statements on available tax
losses carried forward. Tax losses carried forward have arisen predominantly in entities outside the UK. The
directors consider that recognition of the asset is supported by forecasts and actual trading performance sufficient
to generate future taxable profits against which the deferred tax asset is expected to reverse. The future off-set of

tax losses carried forward is not restricted and not subject to expiry.

There are no unrecognised deferred tax assets or liabilities. No provision has been made in respect of additional
taxation which may become payable in the event that retained profits of overseas subsidiary undertakings are -
- distributed to the parent company. The amount of such liability at 31 December 2020 is not material (2019: same).
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25 Analysis of net debt

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash at bank -

Borrowings

Amounts due within one year
Debt due to related parties (Note 31)

Amounts due within after one year

Other loans (Note 21)
Debt due to related parties (Note 21)

TOTAL Net Debt

26 Pension scheme liability

-Group and company

At 1 January 2020
Movement

At 31 December 2020

At1Jan2020 Exchange rate Cash flows At 31 Dec 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
49,662 1,769 114,387 65,818
49,662 1,769 14,387 65,818
(7,000) - - (7,000)
(269) (16) 65 (220)
©(1,021) (58) . 225 -~ (854)
(8,290) (74) 290 (8,074)
41,372 1,695 14,677 57,744

Employee

benefits

£000

18,729

2,261

20,990
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27 Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution pension schemes
The group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for all employees of the group. Contributions totalling
£90k (2019: £86k) were payable to the scheme.at the end of the year and are included in creditors.

Contributions made into this plan are paid by the group at rates specified in the rules of the scheme. The total
amount recognised in profit or loss during the year was £1,705k (2019: £1,520k). .

Defined benefit pension schemes

. The group's defined benefit pension arrangements in the UK are operated through the Ruberoid PLC Staff Pension
Scheme (the "Scheme"). Group contributions payable for the year to the defined benefit scheme amounted to
£2,324k (2019: £2,241k). )

The Ruberoid PLC Staff Pension Scheme was closed to new members on 6 April 2003. A defined contribution
scheme based on the stakeholder arrangement was introduced for staff from that date. It has been agreed that an
employer contribution rate of 9% pensionable pay will apply in future years.

The latest full actuarial valuation of the Ruberoid PLC Staff Pension Scheme carried out at 'S April 2020 was
updated to 31 December 2020 by a qualified independent actuary. For closed schemes under the projected unit
method the current service cost will increase as the members of the scheme approach retirement.

From 6 April 2007 changes were introduced limiting the future increases to pensionable salary to 3% per annum
and increases to pensions in payment in respect of service after 6 April 2007 to 3% per annum. The employee
would pay any increase in the cost of future accrual of benefits. Also from 6 April 2007 the new Group
Stakeholder Scheme was introduced. This is a defined contribution scheme open to members of the Ruberoid PLC

Staff Pension Scheme.

The Scheme is subject to the Statutory Funding Objective under the Pension Scheme Act 2004. The amounts
recognised are as follows:

Reconciliation of scheme assets and liabilities to assets and liabilities recognised

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows: ,
2020 2019

£000 ' £ 000
Fair value of scheme assets ‘ - 64,151 - 62,615
Present value of defined benefit obligation (85,141) (81,344)
Defmed benefit pension scheme deficit ‘ ‘ (20,990) (18,729)
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27 Post-employment benefits (continucd)

The amounts recognised in profit or loss are as follows:

Administration costs
Net interest expense (note 8)

The amounts recognised in comprehensive income are as follows:

Losses/(gains) ) ‘

Gain on scheme assets in excess of interest
Experience gains on liabilities

Losses from changes to financial assumptions
Gains from changes to demographic assumptions
Past service cost '

Defined benefit obligation

Movements in the present value of defined benefit ob]igaﬁon were as follows:

Present value at start of year

Past service costs

" Interest cost

Benefits paid

Experience gain on liabilities
Changes to demographic assumptions
Changes to financial assumptions *

Preserit value at end of year

2019

2020
" £000 £000
210 232

371 508
581 740

. 2020 2019
£000 £000
(1,381) (3,902)
(958) (226)
9,791 7,979
(3,611) 2,131)
163 -
4,004 1,720
2020 2019
£000 £000
81,344 78,012
163 -
1,674 2,191
(3,262). (4,481)
(958) . (226)
(3.611) @.131)
9,791 7,979
85,141 81,344
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27 Post-employment benefits (continued)

Fair value of scheme assets

Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows:

2019

2020

: : £000 £000
Fair value at start of year - 62,615 59,502
Interest income 1,303 1,683
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest income 1,381 3,902 -
Administration costs (210) (232)
Contributions by scheme participants 2,324 2,241
Benefits paid (3,262) (4,481)
Fair value at end of year 64,151 62,615 -
Analysis of assets
The analysis of the scheme assets at the balance sheet date was as follows:

' 2020 2019
% %
Equities 24 24
Cash 6 5
Gilts 11 8
Bonds 9 10
Bulk émuity policy 36 38 ‘.
Multi-asset credit S0 12
Diversified growth funds h 3 3
i 100

100

The return on plah assets was épproximately £2,684k (2019: £5,585k).

The assets do not include any investment in shares or property of the company.
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27 Post-employment benefits (contmued)
The-principal assumptions used by the actuary to calculate the deﬁned benefit scheme liabilities mclude

2020 2019
) % ' %

Discount rate , _ 1.30 2.10
Retail Price Index (RPI) inflation " 30 : 3.20
Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation > 230 - 2.20
RPI max 5% pension increases . 3.00 . 3.10
RPI max 3% pension increases ( 2.50 2.60
CPI max 3% pension increases 2.00 - 2.00

119% of the S3N A 110% of S2NxA tables
tables with CMI12019  With CMI 2018

Post retirement mortality assumption projections using a projections using a
long-term improvement  long-term improvement
rate of 1.25% p.a. , rateof1.50% pa

Members take 90% of  Members take 90% of
the maximum available the maximum available

Tax-free cash . " cash, based on the cash, based on the
current commutation cuirent commutation
factors - factors

The assumptions are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuarial assumptions which, due to the
timescale involved, may not necessarily be borne out in practice.

28 (falled-up share capital and reserves

Allotted, called up and fully paid shares : _ ,

- : 2020 ' 2019
: : No. £000. No. - £000
Ordinary shares of £1 each . 47,537,676 47,538 47,537,676 47,538

The company has one class of ordinary shares, each share carries one voting right per share but no right to fi xed :
income,

/.
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28 Called-up share capital and reserves (continued)
The group and company's other reserves are as follows:

Profit and loss account :
The profit and loss account represents cumulative profits or losses net of dividends and actuarial gains and losses
on defined benefit pension scheme.

Non-controlling interest
The non-controlling interest represents the share of the interest held by the non-controllmg shareholders of the
subsidiary undertakings. .

Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the shales issued plus the fair value of
any other consideration given, and the nominal value of the shares received in exchange.

29 Capital Commitments
At 31 December 2020, the group had capltal commitments as follows:
2020 2019 .
£000 £000
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements 447 212
447 212

30 Contingent liabilities

Several group entities in the contracting segment have issued perfoxmzince bonds relating to contracting
engagements. These financial guarantees are issued by local banks and are secured by a ‘credit agreement’
through bank deposns and amount to £1,466,383 at 31 December 2020 (2019: £1,025,441). -
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31 Related party transactions

Group :
, 2020 2019
Sales to related parties ‘ . £000 £000
Canam Sales BV . 5,573 5,859
ATAB Nederlaud BV i o ’ 2,627 2,048
Primadak Roosendaal BV 11,786 | 1 5,7 53
© IKO SAS (former Mepple SA) : . . 2.369 2.359
IKO Sales International NV | , . 1,664 ) 1,421
IKQ Insulations UK Ltd . 497 - ’ 183
~ IKO Insulations SAS . 228 267
Otlier Related Parties | 21 - 43

Total, . 24765 27,933

Group ' ' . ,
V 2020 2019
£ 000 £000
Interest receivable from related parties (note 7) ' & 38 . 54
Interest payable to related parties (note 8) (19) (21)
Total 19 . 33

Group

. , 2020 2019
Purchases from related parties ' v £000 £000
IKO Insulations UK Ltd - . ) o 31,386 26,081
Total » ) 31,386 26,081
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31 Related party transactions (continucd)

Group

| 2020 2019
Amounts due from related parties (note 20) ' ' £000 £000
Iko Europe NV (Belgium) A ‘ - 54,857 37,125
Primadak Roosendaal BV : 2,820 - 3,037
TKO SAS (former Meple SA) . ' 469 247
IKO Insulation UK ' : 482 -
ATAB Nederland BV o : 147 155
Canam Sales BV ' , ' 125 76
British Asphalt & Bitumen Ltd. (Northern Ireland) 89 89
Other Related Parties 520 2,223
Total 59,518 42,952
Group

2020 - 2019

Amounts due to related parties (note 21) ' : £ 000 £000
Iko Sales Ltd. (Canada) - , 7,000 7,000
Iko Europe NV (Belgium) - ’ L 6311 2,333
Iko S&E GmbH , : 746 1,092
IKO Insulations UK Ltd. . 3,326 - 619
IKO Insulations SAS " . 203 172
Other Related Parties ' ‘ | . 371 27
Total 17,957 11,443

3

Related parties refer to entities in the groups headed up by IKO Enterprises UK ULC, IKO Sales Ltd, and IKO
Enterprises Europe ULC. The £7,000K loan from TKO Sales Ltd (Canada) was fully repaxd by IKO Plc, after the
+ year end in August 2021, see note 34. ,
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32 Financial instruments

Group ' .

The carrying value of the group's financial assets and liabilities are summarised by category below:

Financial assets
« Cash at bank and in hand

Measured at undiscounted amount receivable
¢ Trade and other debtors (see note 20)
Equity instruments measured at cost less impairment
. » Fixed asset investments in unlisted equity instruments (see note 16)

Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
* Other loans and liabilities (see note 21)

Measured at undiscounted amount payable
« Trade and other creditors (see note 21)

33 Parent and ultimate parent undertaking

2020 2019
£000 £ 000
65,818 49,662
112,817 101,926 .
6,113 . 6,113
184,748 157,701
2020 2019
£ 000 £000
220 . 269
59,821 55,858
60,041 56,127 ,

The compény's immediate parent company is IKO UK Holdings ULC which is incorporated and registered in

Canada.

The company's ultimate controlling company is IKO Enterprises UK ULC which is incorporated and registered in

Canada.

The largest and smallest group for which the company is included in consolidated financial statements is IKO
U.K. Limited. Neither the immediate nor the ultimate parent company prepares publicly available consolidated

financial statements. The registered office address of IKO U.K. Limited is as set out on note 1.
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34 Events after the balance sheet date

With Brexit effective as of 1 January 2021, the period of regulatory uncertainty one faced at the end of 2020,
partially extended into 2021. New business processes e.g. for customs compliance have been rolled out. The
business will continue to monitor the situation throughout this period so that we are prepared to react to new
opportunities, risks and challenges that may present themselves. Management has performed detailed review of
Brexit impact and- implemented required administrative and ERP changes, as well as committed engagement of”
logistical trading partners, in order to handle the additional administrative and financial requirements for customs
purposes, as the group is-acquiring majority of its’ raw materials from outside UK. The business activities have
been resumed in January 2021 and no constraints in the UK - EU supply chain were noted.

Competitive pressure on selling prices and the increase in raw material prices, as observed in 2020 and continuing
in 2021 and will continue to be a challenge for the group

The £7,000K loan from IKO Sales Ltd (Canada) to IKO Plc (see Note 21) was fully repaid by IKO Plc, after the
- year end, in August 2021,

At the point of signing the financial statements the directors have identified no material impact on the carrying
values of the assets and liabilities disclosed on the balance sheet as at 31 December 2020.
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